
 

       
In-Person and Via Live Stream: Click Here   

Dial-In Live Stream: 312-626-6799; Webinar ID 824 6258 9927 Passcode: 94769 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 9, 2024 REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: - emailed public comment can be sent to the village clerk at vbelmonte@forestpark.net 

prior to 6:30 p.m. the day of the meeting 
COMMUNICATIONS:   

 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  

1. Fire Department 
 
BILLS BY RESOLUTION 
  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
 
NEW BUSINESS:  

1. Resolution to approve and authorize the execution of a professional engineering services proposal to 
perform a feasibility study for the relocation and construction to replace the existing Jackson Boulevard 
Water Reservoir with CBBEL 

2. Resolution authorizing the award for the 2024 Village of Forest Park Ferdinand Avenue Watermain and 
Storm Sewer Replacement and Ferdinand and Adams Street Resurfacing Project Contract to Bolder 
Contractors 

3. Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Request for Qualifications for services related to professional 
consulting services for Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Meter Replacement Program  

4. Resolution approving Pay Request #2 (Final) for the 2024 Green Alley Improvements Project from J. 
Nardulli Concrete, Inc. (800 & 900 Block of Circle-Marengo Alley); 

5. Resolution approving Pay Request #1 (Final) for the Madison Street Landscaping Project to Emerald Site 
Services, LLC; 

6. Forest Park Resolution approving application for Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program (ITEP) 
Grant for the Forest Park Harrison Street Streetscape Project 

7. Ordinance Amending Chapter 6, Safety and Traffic Control Commission, of Title 2, Boards and 
Commissions 

8. Approval: Appointment of the Following Individual to their Respective Board/Commission 
a. Stanley Brown  Safety & Traffic Commission   expires 04/30/2028 

9. Approval: Community Center Senior Trip Contract – Coopers Hawk Winery and Music Theater Works 
10. Approval: Solicitation Request- Salvation Army North and Central Division 
11. Disability Employment Awareness Month Proclamation 

 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS   

ADJOURNMENT INTO CLOSED SESSION: Pursuant to Employment Matters Regarding Specific Employees 

(5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) Compensation  

 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

 COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, September 23, 2024   

Lower Level of Village Hall 
7:00 PM 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82462589927?pwd=79gx4l1WQxbMhuKjqFpLhmlf46dvVM.1
mailto:vbelmonte@forestpark.net


THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, SEPTEMBER 9, 2024 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:00 p.m.  
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.  
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by Commissioner Nero that the minutes 
from the August 26, 2024, Regular meeting of the Council be approved.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSTAIN: Commissioner Melin-Rogovin 
The motion carried. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Dan Riley requested the village install a jersey wall at the end of the 1100 block of Marengo at 
the alley to deter traffic from traveling the wrong way on the block.   
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 
 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
None 
 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution for the payment of bills 
be adopted.  The bills totaled $448,637.94. 
 
 

 
 

R-78-24 
APPROVAL OF BILLS IN 

THE AMOUNT OF 
$448,637.94 
APPROVED 



 2 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
 
Ms. Linda Schuler, CEO, gave a presentation to the board, 
outlining the services available through Housing Forward.  
Since COVID, the nightly shelter at St. John Lutheran has been 
closed. COVID prompted the conversion to a hotel-based model 
at the Wright Inn Hotel on Oak Park Avenue.  There is still a 
need for emergency services and help for families.  Housing 
Forward is currently leasing apartments for families in need of 
housing on a permanent and temporary basis.  Ms. Schuler 
advised that services can also be accessed through emailing 
outreachteam@housingforward.org or through the Suburban 
Cook County Call Center at (877) 426-6515.  In addition, Police 
and Fire staff can reach out for emergency help/shelter for those 
they encounter on shift.  Last, Ms. Schuler spoke about the 
headquarters, located at 1851 S. 9th Avenue, in Maywood, 
where they provide drop-in services, including showers, 
laundry, and daily lunch.  Housing Forward is always looking for 
volunteers to help their mission. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Ordinance waiving bid and 
authorizing the acceptance of a quote for the purchase of 
training equipment for the Village of Forest Park Fire 
Department be adopted.    
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HOUSING FORWARD 
PRESENTATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-26-24 
ORDINANCE APPROVING 

PURCHASE OF FIRE 
DEPARTMENT TRAINING 

EQUIPMENT 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:outreachteam@housingforward.org


 3 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Ordinance waiving bid 
and authorizing the acceptance of a quote for the purchase of a 
2024 XT56 Freightliner Pro Forestry Combo Truck be adopted.  
It was discussed that this purchase will replace two very old 
vehicles, updating our fleet, providing cost savings over 
purchasing two vehicles. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Ordinance amending 
Section 3-3-6, entitled “License Fee and Number,” of Chapter 3, 
entitled “Liquor Control,” of Title 3, entitled “Business and 
License Regulations” of the village code of ordinances of the 
Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution approving and ratifying 
the execution of a Grant Agreement by and between the Office 
of the Attorney General, State of Illinois, and the Village of 
Forest Park for a FY2025 Organized Retail Theft Crime Grant 
be adopted.   
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Ordinance authorizing 
the sale or disposition of Surplus Property of the Village of 
Forest Park be adopted. 

O-27-24 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 
PURCHASE OF FORESTRY 

COMBO XT56 TRUCK 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-28-24 
ORDINANCE AMENDING 

NUMBER OF LIQUOR 
LICENSES RE: BABS 

COMEDY CLUB 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-79-24 
RESOLUTION RATIFYING 

ORGANIZED RETAIL 
THEFT GRANT WITH 
ILLINOIS ATTORNEY 

GENERAL 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-29-24 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS 
PROPERTY 
APPROVED 



 4 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to direct the Forest Park Board of Fire and 
Police Commissioners to appoint one candidate from its 
current Fire Lieutenant eligibility list and one candidate from its 
Probationary Firefighter eligibility list to fill vacancies in the Fire 
Department. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
   
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to appoint Jordan Kuehn to the Forest 
Park Planning and Zoning Commissioner (term to expire 
4/30/2028). 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to approve the execution of an agreement 
with Teatre Zinzanni Chicago, associated with events 
organized by the Community Center. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF FIRE AND 
POLICE COMMISSIONERS 

DIRECTED TO HIRE ONE 
FIRE LIEUTENANT AND 

ONE PROBATIONARY 
FIREFIGHTER 

APPROVED BY MOTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MR. JORDAN KUEHN 
APPOINTED TO PLANNING 
AND ZONING COMMISSION 

APPROVED BY MOTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY CENTER 
AGREEMENT WITH 
TEATRE ZINZANNI 

APPROVED BY MOTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

It was moved by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded 
by Commissioner Voogd to approve the request from Kiwanis 
Club of Forest Park to conduct their annual Peanut Days 
fundraiser and to solicit donations throughout the village on 
September 13-15, 2024. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin to approve the requests from 
Hephzibah and the Forest Park Chamber of Commerce to 
display banners promoting their upcoming events. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

KIWANIS CLUB 
FUNDRAISING REQUEST 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HEPHZIBAH AND 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

BANNER REQUESTS 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
Administrator Entler was not in attendance, due to professional development scheduling. 
 
 
COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 
 
Commissioner Maxham commented on the sad week in Forest Park, due to the tragic murders that 
happened on Labor Day on the CTA train in Forest Park.  The commissioner went on to say that all of the 
commissioners discussed a way to honor the Police Department for the fine work they did in response to 
this tragedy, which was refreshing since these types of discussions have not happened in a long time.  
Commissioner Maxham further talked about the unacceptable and condescending treatment of the village 
staff.  The commissioner suggested that a way to honor the staff right now would be to address the zoning 
code rewrite ordinance that was sent out a while ago and to adopt the salary ordinance and to agree to 
pay these employees what they deserve.  Last, the commissioner thanked staff and offered to speak to 
anyone who would like to discuss any of this with her. 
 
Commissioner Nero recognized the Forest Park first responders and admired their performance due to 
training and preparation in response to the tragic event on the blue line last week.  The commissioner 
expressed his pride in the staff and elected officials who rallied that week and acted professionally and 
were sensitive to the situation.  Further, Commissioner Nero reported about all of the positive 
developments happening in Forest Park, namely, the U-Haul development, the Townhomes at Beloit and 
Harvard and the Aldi store, which is scheduled to open by November 1st.  In addition, the Washington 
Townhomes are under way and a butcher shop is scheduled to open soon on Madison Street.  There are 



 6 

many other changes coming to Forest Park, including the potential for a 60-unit apartment building, 
facelifts at the property at Circle and Harlem and Shanahan’s and Charlie’s restaurants are for sale. 
 
 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin expressed her gratitude to the Forest Park first responders who worked on 
the tragedy last week.  She stated that she’s never been more saddened and so proud at the same time.  
The efforts highlighted the staff’s teamwork, training, expertise and professionalism.   In addition, the 
commissioner participated in the Fall Fest at the Park District and provided safe streets information and 
trick or treat safety information to residents.  Last, the commissioner thanked the Housing Forward 
organization for their presentation tonight. 
 
Commissioner Voogd reported that the next community cleanup event is scheduled for Saturday, 
September 21.  Registration is recommended.  The commissioner thanked Twisted Cookie for providing 
treats for the participants.  The commissioner further echoed the sentiments of other commissioners 
regarding the tragedy last week and thanked the Village Administrator, the First Responders and the 
Mayor for their hard work and involvement.  The staff was complimented for their collaboration with the 
CTA the Chicago Police Department and for their grace, empathy and professionalism in dealing with the 
situation..   
 
 
Mayor Hoskins reported that former Marine and a victim in last week’s shooting, Simeon Bihesi, is being 
buried in Forest Park tomorrow.  The visitation will be at Zimmerman Harnett Funeral Home and the burial 
will be at Concordia Cemetery at 7900 Madison Street. The mayor further recognized Police Staff, 
including Deputy Chief Chris Chin, Detective Lieutenant Dan Pater and Detective Sergeant Adam 
Stasinopoulos for leading the investigation, fielding the media and collaborating with Village Administrator 
Entler. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved, and Commissioner 
Maxham seconded to adjourn. The motion carried unanimously.  
 
Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 7:55 P.M. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 

Vanessa Belmonte 
Village Clerk 



Forest Park 

Fire DePartment 

 

 
 

august 2024 
 

 

 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Calls for service: 

The Fire Department responded to 366 calls in the month of August. That is an 
average of 11.8 calls per day for the month. 56% of the calls were for EMS. 44% 
were for fire/service calls.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Incidents:  

08/20/2024  540 N. Cuyler – Oak Park - Garage fire  

 

 

Forest Park Engine company 401 assisted with extinguishment and overhaul. 

 

 

 



08/31/2024  920 Hayes – Oak Park - Structure fire  

 

 



08/31/2024  920 Hayes – Oak Park - Structure fire  

 

 



08/31/2024  920 Hayes – Oak Park - Structure fire  

 

Forest Park Engine Company 401 assisted with overhaul and extinguishment.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Fire Inspections: 

 

 
 

 

Inspections: 

Residential inspections: 0 

Commercial inspections: 0 

Re-inspections: 

Commercial: 0 

Residential: 0 

 

 

0

0

Inspections

Commercial Residential



 

 

Training 
August 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

FPFD            

• Building Construction                                                                                                                        7 
• Driver                                                                                                                                                   3.5 
• EMS CE                                                                                                                                                 9 
• FAE                                                                                                                                                        1 
• Fire Critique                                                                                                                                         3 
• Fireground Assignments                                                                                                                   1.5 
• Hoseline Advancement                                                                                                                     1 
• Hydrants                                                                                                                                                .75 
• Ladders                                                                                                                                                 1.5 
• Ventilation                                                                                                                                           1 

 

Total =                                                                                                                                                              29.25 

Outside Drills/Classes 

• Instructor 2                                                                                                                                       45 

Total =                                                                                                                                                              45  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other Activities 

o Meeting                                    8 
o Data Base                    17 
o Seminars                      0 
o Scheduling                      5 
o General Administration                   20 

Total =                                                                                                                                                              50 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

News and Events: 

• Engine 401 attended 5 block parties. 
• The FD installed 1 car seat for the month of August. 

 

 



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

               BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 
that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved
and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Refunds and Allocations 4,035.74          
Public Affairs 221,930.34      
Police Department 11,628.02        
Community Center 4,152.47          
Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 9,330.56          
Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 390.40             
Department of Health & Safety 17,371.95        
Streets and Public Improvements 24,298.61        
Public Property 29,149.13        
Seizure 894.76             
Federal Customs 4,022.19          
TIF 2,291.84          
VIP 439,148.49      
Water Department 285,187.99      

TOTAL 1,053,832.49$ 

  ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 23rd Day of September 2024

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

___________________________
Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
Vanessa Belmonte, Village Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-4450-121  Authorize.Net 08/31/2024 84.36              

100-00-000-4450-121  Passport Labs Inc 08/31/2024 106.56            

100-00-000-4450-130  Authorize.Net 08/31/2024 434.27            

100-00-000-4450-130  Passport Labs Inc 08/31/2024 2,644.02         

100-00-000-4450-140  Authorize.Net 08/31/2024 41.94              

100-00-000-4450-140  Passport Labs Inc 08/31/2024 224.59            

100-00-000-4510-106 Dakyla Thomas 08/28/2024 425.00            

235-00-000-4510-106 Dakyla Thomas 08/28/2024 75.00              

Refunds and Allocations 4,035.74         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6120-121  GFS Marketplace 08/19/2024 282.87            

100-10-101-6120-121  Living Fresh Market 08/20/2024 26.48              

100-10-101-6120-121  Widaman Sign 08/12/2024 187.20            

100-10-101-6120-121  Widaman Sign 08/12/2024 124.80            

100-10-101-6120-160  Zoom Video Communications Inc 09/04/2024 94.99              

100-10-101-6120-305 Corey Thomas 09/10/2024 425.00            

100-10-101-6120-305  Triton College Foundation 09/13/2024 100.00            

100-10-101-6145-290  Amazon.com 08/02/2024 108.21            

100-10-101-6145-290  Amazon.com 08/15/2024 15.98              

100-10-101-6150-125  IPELRA 08/23/2024 400.00            

100-10-101-6150-125  Restaurants - General 08/08/2024 16.91              

100-10-101-6150-125 General transportation Cab/taxi/uber 08/06/2024 81.09              

100-10-101-6150-220 Anastasie M. Senat 08/31/2024 330.00            

100-10-101-6150-220 Anastasie M. Senat 08/31/2024 247.50            

100-10-101-6150-300  West Suburban Cons Dispatch Center 09/06/2024 207,659.36     

100-10-101-7000-150  Telcom Innovations Group LLC 08/27/2024 72.50              

100-10-101-7000-150  Telcom Innovations Group LLC 08/28/2024 72.50              

100-11-111-6100-120  Techno Consulting Inc 09/01/2024 3,850.00         

100-11-111-6110-105  Synapse Networks Inc 07/18/2024 4,742.00         

100-11-111-6110-110  Adobe Acrobat Pro DC 08/05/2024 6.58                

100-11-111-6110-110  Adobe Acrobat Pro DC 08/10/2024 305.87            

100-11-111-6110-110  Springbrook Holding Company LLC 08/15/2024 1,740.00         

100-11-111-6110-110  Springbrook Holding Company LLC 08/31/2024 0.50                

100-11-111-6110-110  Techno Consulting Inc 09/01/2024 1,040.00         

Public Affairs 221,930.34     



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-12-121-5005-030 Dan Miller 09/04/2024 3,871.94         

100-12-121-5005-030 Joe Schick 09/06/2024 2,880.00         

100-12-121-6120-305 Daniel Pater 09/05/2024 421.20            

100-12-123-6145-202  Bio-One Chicago LLC. 08/31/2024 100.00            

100-12-123-6145-202 Karl Solms 09/05/2024 58.00              

100-12-123-6145-202  Amazon.com 08/26/2024 243.63            

100-12-123-6145-291  Amazon.com 08/22/2024 45.98              

100-12-124-6145-211 Tom Cannon 09/04/2024 3.84                

100-12-124-6150-114  Thomson Reuters-West 09/01/2024 468.43            

100-12-125-6145-204  DACRA Adjudication System 08/31/2024 2,500.00         

100-12-125-6145-204  DACRA Adjudication System 08/31/2024 1,035.00         

Police Department 11,628.02       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-151-6140-200  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 08/14/2024 127.45            

100-15-152-6170-200  Amazon.com 08/13/2024 145.58            

100-15-153-6170-202  Sandra Inflatables 08/05/2024 178.00            

100-15-153-6170-202  Park District of Forest Park 08/02/2024 80.00              

100-15-153-6170-202  Park District of Forest Park 08/08/2024 32.00              

100-15-153-6170-202  Walmart Stores Inc 08/02/2024 127.89            

100-15-154-6170-110  Drury Lane 08/07/2024 214.94            

100-15-154-6170-110  Historic Auto Attraction 08/27/2024 500.00            

100-15-154-6170-110  Living Fresh Market 08/20/2024 79.76              

100-15-154-6170-110  Restaurants - General 07/09/2024 564.70            

100-15-154-6170-110  Restaurants - General 07/09/2024 56.47              

100-15-154-6170-110  Restaurants - General 08/22/2024 421.75            

100-15-154-6170-110  Restaurants - General 08/28/2024 733.92            

100-15-154-6170-110  Tinker Swiss Cottage 08/27/2024 126.00            

100-15-154-6170-110  Tinker Swiss Cottage 08/28/2024 21.01              

100-15-154-6170-110  Paramount Theatre 06/28/2024 661.00            

100-15-169-6810-125  Amazon.com 09/16/2024 82.00              

Community Center 4,152.47         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-21-211-5005-030 Samantha Bahena 06/26/2024 505.04            

100-21-211-6100-110  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/26/2024 6,541.10         

100-21-211-6110-110  Gordon Flesch Co Inc 09/06/2024 42.78              

100-21-211-6140-102  FED EX 09/18/2024 43.48              

100-21-211-6140-104  Office 8 08/29/2024 342.93            

100-21-211-6140-104  Arthur P O'Hara Inc 09/05/2024 414.00            

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 08/20/2024 32.66              

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 08/22/2024 165.16            

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 08/27/2024 70.68              

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 09/04/2024 87.09              

100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 08/29/2024 87.90              

100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 09/04/2024 56.78              

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 09/01/2024 639.05            

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 09/04/2024 87.23              

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T LONG DISTANCE 09/04/2024 3.68                

100-21-211-6160-001  Notary Public Illinois 08/20/2024 16.00              

100-21-211-6160-001  Notary Public Illinois 08/20/2024 16.00              

100-21-211-6160-001  Notary Public Illinois 08/21/2024 49.00              

100-21-211-6160-001  CNA Surety Direct Bill 08/26/2024 30.00              

100-21-211-6160-001  Alliant Insurance Services Inc - 8377 08/30/2024 100.00            

Accounts and Finance (Clerks Office) 9,330.56         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-302-6110-200  Air One Equipment Inc 08/27/2024 165.00            

100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 08/30/2024 54.99              

100-30-303-6145-300  Amazon.com 09/09/2024 47.49              

100-30-303-6145-300  Mckesson Medical 08/24/2024 122.92            

Accounts and Finance (Fire Department) 390.40            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017  AMS Electric Inc 08/16/2024 1,935.00         

100-40-401-5000-017 Tariq Dandan 09/02/2024 3,990.00         

100-40-401-6140-130  Cloudpermit Inc 09/03/2024 6,000.00         

100-40-402-6150-232  B&F Construction Code Service 09/09/2024 750.00            

100-40-402-6150-232 Tariq Dandan 09/02/2024 1,932.00         

100-40-402-6150-240  Growing Community Media NFP 08/28/2024 365.00            

100-40-402-6150-240  RealInfo LLC 08/19/2024 300.00            

100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 08/23/2024 250.00            

100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 08/28/2024 300.00            

100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 08/28/2024 200.00            

100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 09/01/2024 1,200.00         

100-40-403-6150-230  Elevator Inspection Services 08/27/2024 100.00            

100-40-410-6140-100  RealtyTrac 08/21/2024 49.95              

Department of Health and Safety 17,371.95       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-501-6120-305  Amazon.com 09/03/2024 95.79              

100-50-502-6180-160  Com Ed 08/24/2024 4,335.97         

100-50-502-6185-110  One Way Safety LLC 07/30/2024 195.36            

100-50-502-6185-505  West Cook County Solid Waste 08/31/2024 19,671.49       

Streets and Public Improvements 24,298.61       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-552-6180-114  Jack's Rental Inc. 08/30/2024 89.95              

100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 08/31/2024 24.00              

100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 09/04/2024 376.00            

100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 09/04/2024 926.00            

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/26/2024 734.30            

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/26/2024 5,644.88         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/26/2024 383.10            

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/27/2024 2,004.75         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/30/2024 769.30            

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/30/2024 1,168.30         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/30/2024 987.00            

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2024 1,348.90         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2024 399.00            

100-55-553-6180-152  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2024 595.00            

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/29/2024 26.63              

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/29/2024 26.82              

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/29/2024 29.31              

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/29/2024 27.32              

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/29/2024 98.61              

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/29/2024 332.75            

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/30/2024 32.63              

100-55-555-6180-100  Colley Elevator Co 07/22/2024 300.00            

100-55-555-6180-100  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2024 192.00            

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 08/22/2024 297.65            

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 08/29/2024 162.24            

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 09/04/2024 193.60            

100-55-555-6180-115  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2024 250.00            

100-55-555-6180-120  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2024 165.00            

100-55-555-6180-120  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2024 165.00            

100-55-555-6180-130  PremiStar-North 09/04/2024 608.10            

100-55-555-6180-130  Comcast 08/01/2024 340.93            

100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 08/22/2024 224.25            

100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 08/28/2024 2.10                

100-55-555-6180-140  Illinois Alarm 09/01/2024 135.00            

100-55-570-6145-100 George F Prescott 08/29/2024 203.89            

100-55-570-6155-106  Atlas Bobcat LLC 08/28/2024 280.42            

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/26/2024 225.67            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/26/2024 559.46            

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/26/2024 635.33            

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/30/2024 77.88              

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/30/2024 104.90            

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 09/03/2024 299.99            

100-55-570-6155-106  Kimball Midwest 08/22/2024 234.50            

100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas North America LLC 08/21/2024 144.80            

100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas North America LLC 08/21/2024 237.65            

100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas North America LLC 08/21/2024 236.55            

100-55-570-6155-106  Terminal Supply Co 09/05/2024 1,024.39         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/12/2024 488.96            

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/13/2024 558.35            

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/27/2024 231.56            

100-55-570-6155-112  Action Transmission & Auto 08/30/2024 1,843.46         

100-55-570-6155-112  Currie Motors Chevrolet 08/06/2024 426.45            

100-55-570-6155-112  Currie Motors Chevrolet 08/09/2024 140.00            

100-55-570-6155-112  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/15/2024 821.45            

100-55-570-6155-202  Berwyn Garage 08/19/2024 903.05            

100-55-580-6180-302  Great Lakes Urban Forestry 08/31/2024 200.00            

100-55-585-6180-322  Westchester Lock & Key Service Inc 08/22/2024 210.00            

Public Property 29,149.13       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

230-00-000-6900-230  Adobe Acrobat Pro DC 08/10/2024 40.36              

230-00-000-6900-230  IL Tactical Officers Assoc. 08/13/2024 350.00            

230-00-000-6900-230  IL Tactical Officers Assoc. 08/21/2024 350.00            

230-00-000-6900-230  Secretary of State 08/26/2024 154.40            

Seizure 894.76            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-231  Fleet Safety Supply 08/29/2024 1,427.03         

232-00-000-6900-231  Factory Motor Parts Co 08/12/2024 558.88            

232-00-000-6900-231 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 09/03/2024 814.91            

232-00-000-6900-231 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 09/03/2024 119.98            

232-00-000-6900-231  eFax 08/20/2024 18.99              

232-00-000-6900-231 An Aramark Co Galls Inc 08/20/2024 342.40            

232-00-000-6900-231  IL Homicide Investigators Associations 08/09/2024 295.00            

232-00-000-6900-231  IL Homicide Investigators Associations 08/09/2024 295.00            

232-00-000-6900-231  American Red Cross 08/02/2024 150.00            

Federal Customs 4,022.19         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

302-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/26/2024 341.21            

304-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/26/2024 341.21            

304-00-000-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 09/04/2024 927.00            

306-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/26/2024 341.21            

309-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/26/2024 341.21            

TIF 2,291.84         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/26/2024 452.96            

312-00-000-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 09/04/2024 927.00            

312-00-000-7000-130 J. Nardulli Concrete Inc 09/06/2024 381,211.33     

312-00-000-7000-312  Emerald Site Services LLC 08/26/2024 56,250.00       

312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/20/2024 31.36              

312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/21/2024 24.32              

312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/22/2024 105.60            

312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/23/2024 51.20              

312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/27/2024 46.08              

312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/29/2024 48.64              

VIP 439,148.49     



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-80-800-6100-110  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 08/26/2024 6,541.10         

501-80-800-6110-105  Springbrook Holding Company LLC 08/31/2024 928.00            

501-80-800-6120-500 Allie Richards 09/10/2024 1,500.00         

501-80-800-6120-500 Karene Reiter 09/10/2024 1,500.00         

501-80-800-6120-500 Vincent Shannon 09/10/2024 1,500.00         

501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/29/2024 67.64              

501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/29/2024 23.89              

501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/30/2024 218.76            

501-80-800-6800-100  City of Chicago 09/09/2024 196,560.00     

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 11/30/2023 802.00            

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 12/29/2023 247.50            

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 01/31/2024 247.50            

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 02/29/2024 752.50            

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 03/29/2024 247.50            

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 04/30/2024 897.00            

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 05/31/2024 809.00            

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 06/28/2024 279.00            

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 07/31/2024 1,470.00         

501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 08/30/2024 500.00            

501-80-800-6800-150  Centurion Plumbing Company 08/29/2024 12,541.02       

501-80-800-6800-150  Clear View 09/01/2024 11,040.75       

501-80-800-6800-150  Core & Main LP 07/05/2024 125.00            

501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 08/29/2024 17,726.44       

501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 08/29/2024 7,885.55         

501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 08/29/2024 5,936.92         

501-80-800-6800-151  Core & Main LP 08/20/2024 217.09            

501-80-800-6800-151  Core & Main LP 08/22/2024 511.50            

501-80-800-6800-151  OTM Water Services 08/30/2024 1,600.00         

501-80-800-6800-153  USA BLUE BOOK 08/29/2024 472.33            

501-80-800-7000-010 J. Nardulli Concrete Inc 09/06/2024 12,040.00       

Water Department 285,187.99     



1224534-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-________-24 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION  
OF A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES PROPOSAL TO PERFORM A 

FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR THE RELOCATION AND CONSTRUCTION TO 
REPLACE THE EXISTING JACKSON BOULEVARD WATER RESERVOIR 

BY AND BETWEEN CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD.  
AND THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK  

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") proposes to investigate the feasibility 

of constructing dual water reservoirs and a pump station at potential off-site locations 

("Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, due to the nature of the Project, it is hereby determined that the professional 

services of a professional engineer are required to investigate the feasibility of the Project and 

the ability and fitness of Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. ("Burke") will be integral in the 

implementation of the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village has a prior, satisfactory relationship with Burke, and it is 

advisable, necessary and in the best interest of the Village to enter into a contract with Burke to 

provide the required and necessary professional engineering services to investigate the feasibility 

for the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village proposes to use local funds to cover the cost of the Project 

feasibility study with Burke; the Village has applied for and is seeking an IEPA water supply 

revolving loan to fund design, engineering and construction costs for the potential reservoirs. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this Resolution are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. It is hereby determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 

interest that the Village contract for the professional engineering services for the feasibility of the 

Project. 

 Section 3. That certain "Professional Engineering Services Proposal – Jackson 

Boulevard Water Reservoir Replacement Feasibility Study" between the Village and Burke for 

the estimated fee of Two Hundred Twenty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred Fifty and 00/100 



1224534-1 

Dollars ($227,450.00) ("Proposal"), a copy of which is attached hereto marked as Exhibit A, for 

the Project is hereby approved. 

Section 4. The Mayor be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute and the 

Village Clerk to attest on behalf of the Village the Proposal for the Project substantially in the 

form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such changes therein as may be approved by the officials 

executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of 

such changes, if any. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 23rd day 
of September, 2024. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 23rd day of September, 2024. 
 
  
        
 ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this _______ day of September, 2024. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Belmonte, Village Clerk 



1224534-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Professional Engineering Services Proposal –  
Jackson Boulevard Water Reservoir Replacement Feasibility Study 

 
 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 



1224534-1 

 



1236257_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-____________-24 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AWARD FOR THE 2024 VILLAGE OF 
FOREST PARK FERDINAND AVENUE WATERMAIN AND STORM SEWER 
REPLACEMENT AND FERDINAND AND ADAMS STREET RESURFACING 

PROJECT CONTRACT TO BOLDER CONTRACTORS 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park previously approved specifications and re-

advertised for bids for the 2024 Village of Forest Park Ferdinand Avenue Watermain and Storm 

Sewer Replacement and Ferdinand and Adams Street Resurfacing Project ("Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, on September 12, 2024, at 10:00 a.m., bids were received virtually, the bid 

results were publicly opened, read aloud via Zoom and eleven (11) bids were received and 

reviewed by the Village staff and Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd., Village Engineer: 

 COMPANY BID 
- ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE $1,808,939.00 
1 Bolder Contractors $1,442,367.10 
2 Acqua Contractors $1,469,000.00 
3 Martam Construction $1,536,092.10 
4 Joel Kennedy Constructing Corp. $1,555,800.35 
5 Mauro Sewer Construction, Inc. $1,588,946.75 
6 Unique Plumbing Co. $1,628,053.15 
7 Cerniglia Co. $1,697,254.05 
8 Swallow Construction $1,700,430.25 
9 A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. $1,784,984.45 
10 Uno Construction Co., Inc. $1,829,994.00 
11 John Neri Construction Co., Inc. $2,090,172.87 

 
 WHEREAS, Bolder Contractors was the apparent lowest responsible and qualified bidder 

for the Project and provided the correct forms required for the Project, including its bid bond and 

specifications; and 

 WHEREAS, the bid documents have been reviewed by Christopher B. Burke Engineering, 

Ltd., the Village Engineer, which determined Bolder Contractors to be a lowest responsible and 

qualified bidder for the bid, pursuant to Village requirements and conditions, and recommends to 

the Village Council that the award of contract for the Project be made to Bolder Contractors for 

the bid in the amount of One Million Four Hundred Forty-Two Thousand Three Hundred Sixty-

Seven and 10/100 Dollars ($1,442,367.10); and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the Village of Forest Park have determined that it 

is in the best interest of the Village to award the contract for the Project to the lowest responsible 



1236257_1  

and qualified bidder, Bolder Contractors, for the bid in the amount of One Million Four Hundred 

Forty-Two Thousand Three Hundred Sixty-Seven and 10/100 Dollars ($1,442,367.10); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor of the Village of Forest Park execute and file 

the appropriate documents and sign any and all documents necessary for the awarding of the 

contract to Bolder Contractors, pursuant to the bid for the Project, and that the Village Clerk attest 

to the Mayor's signature on said documents. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The Council of the Village of Forest Park finds that it is in the best interest 

of the Village to award the contract for the Project to the lowest responsible and qualified bidder, 

Bolder Contractors, for the bid in the amount of One Million Four Hundred Forty-Two Thousand 

Three Hundred Sixty-Seven and 10/100 Dollars ($1,442,367.10). 

 Section 2. The Mayor and the Village Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and attest, respectively, any and all documents necessary to award the contract for the 

Project to the lowest responsible and qualified bidder, Bolder Contractors, for the bid in the amount 

of One Million Four Hundred Forty-Two Thousand Three Hundred Sixty-Seven and 10/100 

Dollars ($1,442,367.10). 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 23rd day 
of September, 2024. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 23rd day of September, 2024. 
     
        
 ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of September, 2024. 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



 

1236155-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-________-24 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A REQUEST  
FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR SERVICES RELATED TO PROFESSIONAL 

CONSULTING SERVICES FOR ADVANCED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE  
AND WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") finds it necessary and desirable to 

issue a request for proposals to seek responses from qualified professional consulting services for 

advanced metering infrastructure and water replacement program (“RFQ”). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The corporate authorities of the Village hereby approve and authorize the 

issuance of an RFQ in the form and substance attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part 

hereof. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 

approval as required by law. 

RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 23rd 

day of September, 2024. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 23rd day of September, 2024. 
 
  
        
 ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this _______ day of September, 2024. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Belmonte, Village Clerk 



 

1236155-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Request for Qualifications 
Professional Consulting Services for Advanced Metering Infrastructure  

and Water Meter Replacement Program 
 
 



 

1236155-1 

 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) 
 

Professional Consulting Services for Advanced Metering Infrastructure 
and Water Meter Replacement Program 

 
The Village of Forest Park 

 
Issue Date: 

September 24, 2024 
 

Proposal Due Date: 
October 22, 2024 

 
The Village of Forest Park 

517 Des Plaines Ave 
Forest Park, Illinois 60305 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

1236155-1 

I. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 
1. GENERAL 
1.1 The Village of Forest Park is soliciting proposals from professional energy services 

companies and qualified firms (FIRM) for professional consulting services to assist the 
Village with an Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) and water meter replacement 
program (PROJECT).  Professional consulting service should include, but are not limited 
to, assistance and oversight of the procurement of AMI equipment, materials, 
installation services of those equipment and materials, as well as the roll-out of the 
project to help the Village ensure the implementation of the project in a timely 
fashion.  It is the goal of the Village to contract with a qualified team that has 
substantial experience in this type of work. Respondents must be able to demonstrate 
expertise with all aspects of AMI and water meter replacement projects and the 
implementation tasks of such projects. Submittals should include the firm’s 
qualifications, project team, resumes, detailed scope of services/tasks, and recently 
completed AMI and water meter replacement projects the team has completed in 
Illinois. 
 

1.2 Proposals shall be submitted in an 8.5 x 11 format.  They shall be succinct and directly 
relevant to this project.   

 
1.3 Proposal forms are due no later than 10:00am on 10/22/2024 and shall be delivered to 

the Village of Forest Park, Village Hall located at 517 Des Plaines Ave. Forest Park, IL 
60305 in a sealed envelope marked "SEALED PROPOSAL". The envelope shall be 
marked with the name of the project, date, and time set for receipt of proposals. 
 

1.4 Submit one original and one paper copy of your proposal. Double-sided printing is 
encouraged when feasible. An additional electronic copy (PDF) shall also be provided 
on CD/DVD/Flash Drive. 
 

1.5 Those forms located at the end of this document marked “Return with Proposal” shall 
be included with all Proposals. 

 
1.6 All proposals shall be submitted in the format requested. Telephone, email, and fax 

proposals will not be accepted. 
 

1.7 By submitting the Proposal, the Proposer certifies under penalty of perjury that they 
have not acted in collusion with any other Proposer or potential Proposer.   

 
2. PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL  
2.1 It is the responsibility of the Proposer to carefully examine the specifications, proposal 

documents, and to be familiar with all of the requirements, stipulations and 
provisions of the proposed services. Do not submit a proposed contract.  Upon 



 

1236155-1 

acceptance of a submitted Proposal by the Village, a contract will be provided. 
 

2.2 No oral or telephone interpretations of specifications shall be binding upon the Village.  
All requests for interpretations or clarifications shall be made in writing and received 
by the Village at least five (5) business days prior to the date set for receipt of 
proposals or at the pre-proposal conference, if offered.  The Village shall make all 
changes or interpretations of the Proposal Documents in a written addendum and shall 
provide an addendum to any Proposer of record.  Any and all changes to the Proposal 
Documents are valid only if they are included by written addendum to all Proposers.  
Each Proposer must acknowledge receipt of any addenda by indicating same in the 
Proposal.  Each Proposer, by acknowledging receipt of any addenda, is responsible for 
the contents of the addenda and any changes therein. Failure to acknowledge any 
addenda may cause the Proposal to be rejected. The Village will not assume 
responsibility for receipt of any addenda. In all cases, it will be the Proposer’s 
responsibility to obtain all addenda issued. Proposers will provide written 
acknowledgement of receipt of each addendum issued with the Proposal submission.   
 
All questions about the meaning or intent of the Proposal Documents shall be 
submitted in writing to:  

Village of Forest Park 
Attn. Sal Stella 

Director of Public Works 
Phone: (708) 366-4876 

Email: sstella@forestpark.net 
 
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. Only questions 
answered by formal written addenda will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or 
clarifications are without legal effect. 
 

2.3 All costs incurred in the preparation, submission, and presentation of any proposal 
(including travel or personal expenses) shall be the responsibility of the Proposer and 
will not be reimbursed by the Village. 
 

2.4 The proposal deadline is as advertised on the Title Page of this document. Proposals 
received after the specified time and date will not be accepted and will be returned 
unopened to the Proposer. Proposals shall become the property of the Village. The 
Village will maintain confidentiality of all received Proposals, and not disclose 
information provided by prospective Proposers with other Proposers unless otherwise 
required per the Freedom of Information Act. 
 

3. MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS 
3.1 A Proposal that is in the possession of the Village may be altered by a letter bearing 

the signature and name of the person authorized for submitting the proposal, 



 

1236155-1 

provided that it is received prior to the time and date set for the proposal opening. 
Telephone, email or verbal alterations of a proposal will not be accepted. 
 

3.2 A Proposal that is in the possession of the Village may be withdrawn by the Proposer, up 
to the time set for the proposal opening, by a letter bearing the signature and name of 
the person authorized for submitting proposals. Proposals may not be withdrawn 
after the proposal opening and shall remain valid for a period of ninety (90) days 
from the date set for the proposal opening, unless otherwise specified. 
 

4. RESERVED RIGHTS 
4.1 The Village reserves the exclusive right to waive sections, technicalities, irregularities 

and informalities and to accept or reject any and all proposals and to disapprove of any 
and all subcontractors as may be in the best interest of the Village.  

 

II. PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
The Firm selected by the Village pursuant to this RFQ is not authorized to perform work for the 
Village until a fully executed and authorized Contract is in place. 
 
1. GENERAL 

1.1 Project Description: 
The purpose of this contract is to have the professional services of an energy services 
company and/or an engineering firm to assist with the successful development and 
implementation of a turnkey AMI and water meter replacement project. The Village is 
seeking to retain a partner to identify and define a future facing and comprehensive set 
of requirements for the specified project, prepare a complete set of bid documents for 
AMI vendor proposals, evaluate AMI vendor offerings, make a recommendation to the 
Village for the best solution, and provide turnkey implementation support and oversite 
of the entire project.   
 

1.2 Background: 
The Village of Forest Park has a water meter replacement program that identifies water 
meters that are over twenty years old and replaces them on an annual basis.  There are 
currently 3,180 water meters in the Village.  Approximately 35% of these meters are 
digital display devices.  They are all Sensus model meters and are equipped with a Radio 
Read Meter Transceiver Unit (MXU) which permits meter reading via radio signals.  A 
designated Public Works vehicle will move throughout the Village to gather usage 
information.  The MXU connected to the meter receives a wake up signal from the 
vehicle interrogation unit. The MXU obtains the meter's identification number and 
meter reading, which are transmitted back to the interrogation unit. The meter readings 
are then used to produce the water bills. Village staff has conducted preliminary AMI 
research for the Village’s Water Meter System.  Village staff feels that if an AMI system 
is in place many Villages departmental and operating section efficiencies will be 



 

1236155-1 

realized. Staff also anticipates a higher level of customer service will be provided to 
residents with an AMI system in place due to the possibility of leak detection being 
incorporated into the system and having real time water usage available to residents. 
 
Below please find a listing of tasks the selected consultant will be expected to provide at 
a minimum: 
 

1.3 Contract Tasks: 
• Review of Municipal Code and applicable Village Standard Operating Procedures to 

ensure these are current and appropriate for the implementation of an automated 
metering infrastructure project.  

• Preparation of specifications and procurement 
documents necessary for the purchase of water meters, the purchase and/lease of any 
and all AMI radio network components/services, software, and meter installation 
services. 

• Review the Village’s water meter inventory data 
and work with appropriate Village staff to ensure its accuracy.  

• Assist with selecting a metering and AMI system 
that will meet the goals of the Village. 

• Assist in the development of quantities of meters 
by size for the purposes of procuring an appropriate stock of meters.  

• Assist with any negotiations for the procurement of 
the necessary components and services (including meters, radio equipment, software) 
for the successful completion of the project.  

• Identify customer portal option. 
• Develop project schedules and deadlines.  
• Develop 20-year cashflow including all anticipate 

project costs, operational savings and estimated potential revenue enhancements. 
• Assist the Village with the development of a 

transition plan from the existing meter reading processes to the new AMI system.  
• Coordinate the testing of the reading system and 

the installation of the appropriate software with all appropriate vendors and Village 
staff.  

• Schedule and execute the installation of meters. 
• Provide regular progress reports on the project.  
• Prepare full Communications Plan for the project 

and assist in preparing regular communications for distribution through the Village’s 
various communication channels (i.e. website, social media, email, etc.). Prepare and 
maintain a project website if desired by the Village.  

• Ensure the successful commissioning and 
programming of all components of the system to ensure a working AMI system.  

• Coordinate training of Village staff with the 
selected vendors on their respective systems.  



 

1236155-1 

• Review invoices from vendors and provide a 
recommendation to the Village for payment.  

• Work with the Village and all vendors to ensure a 
timely project close out.  
 

1.4 Proposal Format 
Submittals shall be organized according to the following order and include all requested 
information: 

1. Introduction and Project Understanding  
2. Firm Information and Qualifications (size, location, history, resources, services etc.) 
3. Project Team’s Experience on AMI and water meter replacement projects in Illinois 

(Team organizational chart, resumes, project experience and case studies) 
4. Scope of Services (Detailed tasks and preliminary project schedule for turnkey design, 

development and implementation of an AMI and water meter replacement project) 
5. 5 Project References (only AMI and water meter replacement projects in Illinois) 

 
2.  EVALUATION CRITERIA 

Responses will be evaluated based on the quality and completeness of the information 
provided.  Failure to provide any of the requested information may result in 
disqualification. The criteria listed below will be used in the evaluation of the written 
proposals. The evaluation weighting is shown below.  Selection will be based on a 
combination of point scores (outlined below) and best overall value to the 
Agency/Buyer. 

 
Experience (40 points) 

• Company profile: 
o Name of Company and contact information 
o Location of nearest office responsible for point of contact, engineering, 

project management and availability of service technicians. 
o List number of years your team has been involved in the water meter 

business. 
• Qualifications and experience of Company 's personnel with delivering AMI 

projects successfully 
o List ONLY individual names of Company personnel, office location and 

experience of team members responsible for engineering, project 
management for this project. 
 NOTE: Include only resumes of Company personnel. Do not 

include any resumes of partners, subcontractors, etc.  
• Firm References: 

o Include project references for those projects that were completed by 
responding team not just specific to Company references.  
 NOTE:  Do not include any references of partners, subcontractors, 

etc.  



 

1236155-1 

 Preference will be given for local Illinois water meter project 
references. 

o List contact information, project value, number of meters installed, and 
technologies installed. 

 
Technical Approach (30 points) 

• Quality of technical approach, including methods of analysis and an 
understanding of water meter systems and conditions. 

• Quality of approach to AMI data integration and handling. 
• Quality of the audit.   
• Quality of proposed training for Village staff 
• Quality of proposed Village personnel staffing plan both for pre and post 

construction operations. 
 
Project Management (20 points) 

• Clear assignment of responsibility for various project tasks. 
• Preference will be given to accredited Project Management Professional (PMP) 

accredited by Project Management Institute (PMI). 
• Ability to effectively manage project construction and complete the project on 

schedule.   
• Quality of approach to documenting construction conditions and post 

construction data QAQC. 
• Quality of approach of AMI/water meter system data handling and IT 

integration. 
 
Financial (10 points) 

• Financial soundness and stability of the Company, including most recent Annual 
Report and Audited Financial Statement.   

 

III.  TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. DEFINITION OF TERMS 

Wherever herein the following terms are used in the Instructions to Bidders, their 
definitions are as follows: 
 

Village The Village of Forest Park, acting through its authorized 
representatives 

 
Director  The Director of Public Works, acting through its authorized   

representatives 
 
Proposal  The qualifications and scope of services proposed by    

the Proposer 



 

1236155-1 

 
Proposer Any individual, firm, partnership, or corporation submitting a 

Proposal for the Work to be awarded, acting directly or through a 
duly authorized representative 

Firm Any individual, firm, partnership, or corporation with which the 
Village has entered into a contract for this project, acting directly 
or through a duly authorized representative 

 
Contract The written Agreement between the Firm and the Village covering 

the performance of the Work. The Contract includes the Request 
for Proposal, Contract Form, Certificate of Insurance, and 
Specifications. 

  
Specifications Those portions of the Contract Documents consisting of written 

technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction 
systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work and 
to certain administrative details applicable thereto. 

 
Work The result of performing services, furnishing labor and equipment, 

and furnishing and incorporating materials into the construction 
of the Project, all as required by the Contract. 

 
2. SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS 
2.1 The following “Supplemental Specifications” supplement the Standard Specifications.  In 

case of conflict with any part, or parts, of said Standard Specifications, the Supplemental 
Specifications shall take precedence and shall govern.  The following section numbers 
used are in reference to those section numbers used in the SSRBC.   
 
107.01 Laws to be Observed 

 
107.01.01 Sexual Harassment Policy   
The Proposer shall have in place and shall enforce a written sexual harassment 
policy in compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4).  
 
107.01.02 Eligibility for Employment in the United States   
The Proposer shall complete and keep on file, as appropriate, the Immigration and 
Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility Form (I-9).  This form shall be used by 
the Proposer to verify that persons employed by the Proposer are eligible to work in 
the United States. 
 
107.01.03 Civil Rights   
The Proposer shall comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and Title 
49, Code of Federal Regulations, part 21. 
 



 

1236155-1 

107.01.04 Foreign Corporation   
Foreign (non-Illinois) corporations shall procure from the Illinois Secretary of State a 
certificate of authority to transact business in Illinois in accordance with 805 ILCS 
5/13. 
 
107.01.05 Confidentiality of Information   
Any documents, data, records, or other information relating to the project and all 
information secured by the Proposer from the Village in connection with the 
performance of services, unless in the public domain, shall be kept confidential by 
the Proposer and shall not be made available to third parties without written 
consent of the Village, unless so required by court order. 

 
107.26  Indemnification  
Delete the first paragraph of Article107.26 of the SSRBC and substitute the following: 
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Firm shall be responsible for any and all 
injuries to persons or damages to property due to the negligent or willful act or 
omission of the Firm arising or in consequence of the performance of the Work by the 
Firm.  The Firm hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Village, its 
officials, agents, employees, attorneys and volunteers against all injuries, deaths, loss, 
damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, cost and expenses, which 
may in any way accrue against the Village, its officials, agents, employees, attorneys and 
volunteers due to the negligent or willful act or omission of the Firm arising in or in 
consequence of the performance of this work by the Firm. The Firm shall, at its own 
expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other 
expenses arising therefor or incurred in connection therewith; and, if any judgment shall 
be rendered against the Village, its officials, agents, employees, attorneys and 
volunteers, in any such action, the Proposer shall, at its own expense, satisfy and 
discharge the same. The Village, its officials, agents Firm employees, attorneys and 
volunteers shall have the right to select their own counsel and the right to direct their 
own defense. 
 
Firm expressly understands and agrees that any performance bond or insurance policies 
required by this contract, or otherwise provided by the Firm, shall in no way limit the 
responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Village, its officials, 
agents, employees, attorneys and volunteers as herein provided. 

 
107.27  Insurance   
Add the following to Article 107.27 of the SSRBC: 
 

107.27.1 Minimum Scope of Insurance 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

 



 

1236155-1 

A. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 
with the Village named as additional insured, on a form at least as broad as the 
attached sample endorsement including ISO Additional Insured Endorsement CG 
2010 (Exhibit A) Pre-2004 version, CG 2026 (Exhibit B) Pre-2004 version. 

 
B. Insurance Service Office Business Auto Liability coverage form number CA 0001, 

Symbol 01 "Any Auto." 
C. Workers' Compensation as required by the Workers’ Compensation Act of the 

State of Illinois and Employers' Liability insurance. 
 

107.27.2 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the 
Village. At the option of the Village, either:  the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the Village, its officials, 
agents, employees, attorneys and volunteers, or the Firm shall procure a bond 
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation, claim administration and 
defense expenses. 
  
107.27.3 Other Insurance Provisions 
The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

 
107.27.3.1 General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages 
A. The Village, its officials, agents, employees, attorneys and volunteers are to 

be covered as insureds as respects: Liability arising out of activities 
performed by or on behalf of the Firm; products and completed operations 
of the Firm; premises owned, leased or used by the Firm; or automobiles 
owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Firm. The coverage shall contain no 
special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Village, its 
officials, agents, employees, attorneys or volunteers. 

  
B. The Firm’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the 

Village, its officials, employees, agents, attorneys and volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Village, its officials, agents, 
employees, attorneys or volunteers shall be excess of Firm’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. 

 
C. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect 

coverage provided to the Village, its officials, agents, employees, or 
volunteers. 

  
D. Coverage shall state that Firm’s insurance shall apply separately to each 

insured against whom claim is made of suit is brought, except with respect to 
the limits of the insurer's liability. 

  



 

1236155-1 

E. If any commercial general liability insurance is being provided under an 
excess or umbrella liability policy that does not "follow form," then the Firm 
shall be required to name the Village, its officials, agents, employees, 
attorneys and volunteers as additional insureds.  A copy of the actual 
additional insured endorsement shall be provided to the Village. 

  
F. All general liability coverages shall be provided on an occurrence basis. 

Claims-made general liability policies are not acceptable. 
 
107.27.3.2 Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Coverage  
The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the Village, its 
officials, agents, employees, attorneys and volunteers for losses arising from 
work performed by Firm.  Compensation Limits as required by the Labor Code of 
the State of Illinois and Employers’ Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
107.27.4 Verification of Coverage 
The Firm shall furnish the Village with certificates of insurance naming the Village, its 
officials, agents, employees, attorneys and volunteers, as additional insureds (Exhibit 
D), and with original endorsements affecting coverage required by this clause.  The 
certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The certificates and 
endorsements may be on forms provided by the Village and are to be received and 
approved by the member before any work commences.  The attached Additional 
Insured Endorsement (Exhibit E) shall be provided to the insurer for its use in 
providing coverage to the additional insured. Other additional insured 
endorsements may be utilized, if they provide a scope of coverage at least as broad 
as the coverage stated on the attached endorsement (Exhibit E), such as ISO 
Additional Insured Endorsements CG 2010 (Exhibit A) or CG 2026 (Exhibit B).  The 
Village reserves the right to request full certified copies of the insurance policies and 
endorsements. 
  
107.27.5 Subcontractors 
The Firm shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverages for 
subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein. 
 
The Village of Forest Park, its officers, employees, agents, attorneys and volunteers 
shall be named as additional insured. Liability coverage is primary with respects to 
the additional insureds. 
 
107.27.6 Assumption of Liability 
The Firm assumes liability for all injury to or death of any person or persons 
including employees of the Firm, any subcontractor, any supplier or any other 
person and assumes liability for all damage to property sustained by any person or 



 

1236155-1 

persons occasioned by or in any way arising out of any work performed pursuant to 
this agreement. 



 

1236155-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
CG 20 10 03 97 
 
ADDITIONAL INSURED – OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
FIRM – SCHEDULE PERSON OR ORGANIZATION 
 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 
 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
 
  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the 
Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.) 
 
Who Is An Insured (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the 
Schedule, but only with respect to liability arising out of your ongoing operations performed for that 
insured. 
 
 
Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Ins. 1996 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

1236155-1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

 
 
 
 
CG 20 26 11 85 
 
ADDITIONAL INSURED – DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION  
 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 
 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
 
 Name of Person or Organization: 
 
 
(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the 
Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.) 
 
Who Is An Insured (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the 
Schedule as an insured but only with respect to liability arising out of your operations or premises owned by 
or rented to you.  
 
 
Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Ins. 1984 
 



 

1236155-1 

EXHIBIT C 
 
POLICY NUMBER:         COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
          CG 20 37 07 04 
 
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY, PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

ADDITIONAL INSURED – OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
FIRM – COMPLETED OPERATIONS 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 
 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
Name of Additional Insured Person(s) 
Or Organization(s): 

Location and Description of Completed 
Operations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Information required to complete this Section, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 
 
 
Section II – Who is An Insured is amended to include as 
an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) 
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability 
for “bodily injury” or “property damage” caused, in whole 
or in part, by “your work” at the location designated and 
described in the schedule of this endorsement performed 
for that additional insured and included in the 
“products—completed operations hazard”. 
 
 
 
CG 20 37 07 04    © ISO Properties, Inc., 2004   Page 1 of 1 



 

1236155-1 

      EXHIBIT D    (EXAMPLE) 
 

ACORDTM       CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 
Completed 

PRODUCER 
 
Fully Completed 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS 
UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE 
COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. 

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 
INSURED 
 
 
Fully Completed 

INSURER A:  Name of Insurance Company Completed 
INSURER B: Name of Insurance Company Completed 
INSURER C: Name of Insurance Company Completed 
INSURER D: Name of Insurance Company Completed 
INSURER E:  Name of Insurance Company Completed 

COVERAGES 
THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR 
CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 
INSR 
LTR 
 

 

ADD’L 
INSRD 

TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY 
NUMBER 

POLICY EFFECTIVE 
DATE 
(MM/DD/YY) 

POLICY 
EXPIRATION DATE 
(MM/DD/YY) 

LIMITS 

A X GENERAL LIABILITY  CG001 
 

 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
 CLAIMS MADE    OCCUR 
 OWNERS & CONT PROT ((IF REQUIRED) 
 ______________________________ 

GEN’L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIER PER: 
 POLICY PROJECT  LOC 

Policy 
Number Policy Start Date Policy End Date 

EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 
DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES 
(Ea. Occur.) $    50,000 

MED EXP (Any one person) $     5,000 
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 
PRODUCTS-COMP/OP AGG $ 1,000,000 
  

A  
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  CA001 
 

 ANY AUTO  CA001 
 ALL OWNED AUTOS 
 SCHEDULED AUTOS 
 HIRED AUTOS 
 NON-OWNED AUTOS 
 _______________________________ 

 
 
 
 
Policy 
Number 

 
 
 
 
Policy Start Date 

 
 
 
 
Policy End 
Date 

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea. 
Accident) $ 1,000,000 

BODILY INJURY (PER PERSON) $ 

BODILY INJURY (PER ACCIDENT) $ 

PROPERTY DAMAGE (PER 
ACCIDENT) $ 

  GARAGE LIABILITY 
 

 ANY AUTO 

   AUTO ONLY-EA ACCIDENT $ 
OTHER THAN     EA ACC 
AUTO ONLY:            AGG 

$ 
$ 

B X EXCESS UMBRELLA LIABILITY 
 

 OCCUR   CLAIMS MADE 
 DEDUCTIBLE 
 RETENTION      $ 

 

 
 
Policy 
Number 

 
 
Policy Start Date 

 
 
Policy End Date 

EACH OCCURRENCE 
$ per        
request 

AGGREGATE 
$ per        
request 

  
  

C WORKES COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS’ 
LIABIITY 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER 
EXCLUDED?  NO 
If yes, describe under 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS below 

 
Policy 
Number 

 
Policy Start 
Date 

 
Policy End Date 

 WC STATU-  OTHER 
TORY LIMITS  

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $   1,000,000 
E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE $    500,000 

E.L. DIESEASE-POLICY LIMIT $    500,000 

OTHER  Professional Liability (If requested) Policy 
Number 

Policy Start 
Date 

Policy End Date   

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES/EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT/SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
List project number, location and description. No endorsements or additional forms modify or limit coverage provided to additional insured. Coverage provided to the additional insured is 
primary. 
 
CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

 
CANCELLATION 

 
Additional Insured:  Village of Forest Park, its officials, employees, agents, attorneys 
and volunteers 
 
            

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE 
THEREOF, THE ISSUING INSURER WILL MAIL 30 DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE 
HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT,  
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED AGENT 

ACORD 25 (2001/08)             ACORD CORPORATION 1988 



 

1236155-1 

EXHIBIT E 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 
 
Name of Insurer: 
Name of Insured: 
Policy Number: 
Policy Period: 
Endors. Effective Date: 
 
This endorsement modifies coverage provided under the following: 
 
Commercial General Liability 
Coverage Part 
 
Name of Individuals or Organization: 
 
WHO IS AN INSURED section of the policy / coverage document is amended to include as an insured, the 
individuals or organization shown above, but only with respect to liability “arising out of your work”. 
 
For purposes of this endorsement, “arising out of your work” shall mean: 

 
1. Liability the Additional Insured may incur resulting from the actions of a subcontractor it hires. 
2. Liability the Additional Insured may incur for negligence in the supervision of the Named Insured 

subcontractor’s work. 
3. Liability the Additional Insured may incur for failure to maintain safe worksite conditions. 
4. Liability the Additional Insured may incur due to joint negligence of the Named Insured 

Subcontractor and the Additional Insured. 
 
Original Created – 1/2002 
Revised – 1/2005 
 
 
109.02  Scope of Payment 

Add the following to Article 109.02 of the SSRBC: 
 

109.02.1 Taxes  
The Village of Forest Park is a unit of local government and is exempt from the 
payment of Retailers’ Occupation Tax, the Service Occupation Tax (both state and 
local), the Use Tax and the Service Use Tax in Illinois.   No amount will be paid to the 
Firm for the payment of these taxes. 

 



 

1236155-1 

2.2 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE 
Equal Employment Opportunity Clause required by the Illinois Fair Employment 
Practices Commission as a material term of all public contracts: 

 
 “EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY” 

 
In the event of the Firm’s noncompliance with any provision of this Equal Employment 
Opportunity Clause, the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Act or the Fair Employment 
Practices Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts, the Firm may be 
declared non-responsible and therefore ineligible for future Contracts or Subcontracts 
with the State of Illinois or any of its political subdivisions or municipal corporations, and 
the Contract may be canceled or voided in whole or in part, and such other sanctions or 
penalties may be imposed or remedies invoked as provided by statute or regulation. 

 
During the performance of this Work, the Firm agrees as follows: 

 
(1) That it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employ-

ment because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin or ancestry; and 
further that it will examine all job classifications to determine if minority 
persons or women are underutilized and will take appropriate affirmative 
action to rectify any such underutilization. 

 
(2) That, if it hires additional employees in order to perform this Work, or any 

portion hereof, it will determine the availability (in accordance with the 
Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts) of minorities and 
women in the area(s) from which it may reasonably recruit and it will hire 
for each job classification for which employees are hired in such a way that 
minorities and women are not underutilized. 

 
(3) That, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or on 

its behalf, it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal opportunity 
without discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin 
or ancestry. 

 
(4) That it will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 

with which it has or is bound by a collective bargaining or other agreement 
or understanding, a notice advising such labor organization or 
representative of the Firm’s obligations under the Illinois Fair Employment 
Practices Act and the Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public 
Contracts.  If any such labor organization or representative fails or refuses 
to cooperate with the Firm in its efforts to comply with such Act and Rules 
and Regulations, the Firm will promptly so notify the Illinois Fair 
Employment Practices Commission and the contracting agency and will 



 

1236155-1 

recruit employees from other sources when necessary to fulfill its obligation 
thereunder. 

 
(5) That it will submit reports as required by the Illinois Fair Employment 

Practices Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts, furnish 
all relevant information as may from time to time be requested by the 
Commission or the contracting agency, and in all respects comply with the 
Illinois Fair Employment Practices Act and the Commission's Rules and 
Regulations for Public Contracts. 

 
(6) That it will permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts and work 

sites by personnel of the contracting agency and the Illinois Fair Employ-
ment Practices Commission for purposes of investigation to ascertain com-
pliance with the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Act and the Commis-
sion's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts. 

 
(7) That it will include verbatim or by reference the provisions of paragraphs 1 

through 7 of this clause in every performance subcontract as defined in 
Section 2.10(b) of the Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public 
Contracts so that such provisions will be binding upon every such subcon-
tractor; and that it will also so include the provisions of paragraphs 1, 5, 6 
and 7 in every supply subcontract as defined in Section 2.10(a) of the Com-
mission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts so that such provisions 
will be binding upon every such Subcontractor.  In the same manner as with 
other provisions of this Contract, the Firm will be liable for compliance with 
applicable provisions of this clause by all its Subcontractors; further, it will 
promptly notify the contracting agency and the Illinois Fair Employment 
Practices Commission in the event any Subcontractor fails or refuses to 
comply therewith.  In addition, no Proposer will utilize any Subcontractor 
declared by the Commission to be non-responsible and therefore ineligible 
for Contracts or Subcontracts with the State of Illinois or any of its political 
subdivisions or municipal corporations. 

 
 With respect to the two types of Subcontracts referred to under paragraph 

7 of the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause above, following is an 
excerpt of Section 2 of the FEPC's Rules and Regulations for Public 
Contracts: 

 
Section 2.10.  The term "Subcontract" means any agreement, arrangement 
or understanding, written or otherwise, between a Firm and any person (in 
which the parties do not stand in the relationship of an employer and an 
employee): 

 



 

1236155-1 

(a) for the furnishing of supplies or services or for the use of real or 
personal property, including lease arrangements, which, in whole or in 
part, is utilized in the performance of any one or more contracts; or 

 
(b) under which any portion of the Firm’s obligation under any one or 

more contracts is performed, undertaken or assumed.” 
 

2.3 COMPLIANCE WITH FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT REQUESTS  
 Section 7(2) of the Illinois Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”) (5 ILCS 120/7(2)) 

requires certain records that qualify as "public records," which have been prepared by 
and are in the possession of a party who has contracted with the Village, be turned over 
to the Village so that a FOIA requestor can inspect and photocopy the non-exempt 
portions of the public records pursuant to a FOIA request. The Village has a very short 
period of time from receipt of a FOIA request to comply with the request, and it requires 
sufficient time to review the records to decide what information is or is not exempt 
from disclosure. The Proposer acknowledges the requirements of FOIA and agrees to 
comply with all requests made by the Village for public records (as that term is defined 
by Section 2(c) of FOIA) in the Proposer’s possession and to provide the requested 
public records to the Village within two (2) business days of the request being made by 
the Village. The Proposer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Village from all 
claims, costs, penalties, losses and injuries (including but not limited to, attorney's fees, 
other professional fees, court costs and/or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) 
arising out of or relating to its failure to provide the public records to the Village under 
this Agreement.  

 
2.4 ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 

No part of the work herein specified shall be assigned without the written consent of 
the Engineer, and in no case shall such consent relieve the Firm from the obligations 
herein entered into by the same or change the terms of this Agreement. 

 
2.5 PAYMENTS 

If the rate of progress is satisfactory to the Engineer, payment estimates will be 
submitted once a month during the progress of the Work.  Once an invoice and receipt 
of deliverables or service has been verified, the invoice will be processed for payment in 
accordance with the Village payment schedule. In no case will the final payment be 
made until the Firm has complied with all the requirements set forth and the Engineer 
has made his final inspection of the entire work and is satisfied that the entire work is 
properly and satisfactorily completed in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract. 

 
2.6 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

In the event of the Firm’s nonperformance, breach of the terms of the Contract, or for 
any other reason, including that sufficient funds to complete the Contract are not 
appropriated by the Village, the Contract may be canceled, in whole or in part, upon 



 

1236155-1 

the Village's written notice to the Firm. The Village will pay the Firm’s costs actually 
incurred as of the date of receipt of notice of termination. Upon termination, the Firm 
will deliver all documents and products of whatever kind, and their reproducible 
originals related to the project, which have been produced to the date of the notice of 
termination. 
 

2.7 NOT TO EXCEED CONTRACT 
 The contract price is a “not-to-exceed” cost. At any time additional work is necessary 

or requested, and the not-to-exceed price is increased thereby, any change, addition 
or price increase must be agreed to in writing by all parties in the same manner by which 
the original contract was approved. 

 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE  
 
As used in this certificate the term “subcontract” includes the term “purchase order” and all 
other agreements effectuating purchase of supplies or services.  If this certificate is submitted 
as part of a bid or proposal the term "Seller" shall be deemed to refer to the Bidder or Offeror, 
or Subcontractor or Supplier.  This certificate shall be renewed annually.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the certifications made herein shall remain applicable until completion of all 
nonexempt contracts/subcontracts awarded while this certificate is in effect.  The undersigned 
Seller certifies the following to the Village of FOREST PARK hereinafter referred to as Buyer: 
 
A.  REPORTS:  Within thirty (30) days after Buyer's award to Seller of any contract/subcontract 

and prior to each March 31 thereafter during the performance of work under said 
subcontract, the Seller shall file Standard Form 100, entitled "Equal Employment 
Opportunity Employer Information Report EEO-1" in accordance with instructions contained 
therein unless Seller has either filed such report within 12 months preceding the date of the 
award or is not otherwise required by law or regulation to file such report. 

 
B.   PRIOR REPORTS:  Seller, if it has participated in previous contract or subcontract subject to 

the Equal Opportunity Clause (41 C.F.R. Sec. 60-1.4 (a) (1) through (7), or the clause 
originally contained in Section 301 of Executive Order No. 10925, or the clause contained in 
section 201 of Executive Order No. 11114, has filed all required compliance reports.  Seller 
shall obtain similar representations indicating submission of all required compliance 
reports, signed by proposed subcontractors, prior to awarding subcontracts not exempt 
from Equal Opportunity Clause. 

 
C.   CERTIFICATION OF NON SEGREGATED FACILITIES:  Seller certifies that it does not maintain 

or provide for its employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it 
does not permit its employees to perform their services at any location, under its control 
where segregated facilities are maintained.  Proposer certifies further that it will not 
maintain or provide for its employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments 
and that it will not permit its employees to perform their services at any location, under its 
control where segregated facilities are maintained.  Seller agrees that a breach of this 



 

1236155-1 

certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity Clause in this certificate.  As used in this 
certification, the term "segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work area, rest 
rooms, wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms, and 
other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or 
entertainment areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees which 
are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, 
religion, or national origin, because of habit, local custom or otherwise. 

 
 Proposer further agrees that (except where it has obtained identical certifications from 

proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) it will obtain identical certifications from 
proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding $10,000 which are 
not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause; that it will retain such 
certifications in its files; and that it will forward the following notice to such proposed 
subcontractors (except where the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical 
certifications for specific time periods): NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE SUBCONTRACTORS OF 
REQUIREMENT FOR CERTIFICATIONS OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES.  A certification on 
Nonsegregated Facilities, as required by Section 60-1.8 of Title 41 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations, must be submitted prior to the award of a subcontract exceeding $10,000 
which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause.  (Note:  The 
penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001). 

 
D.  AFFIRMATIVE ACTION COMPLIANCE PROGRAM:  Prior to 120 days after receipt of any 

subcontract in the amount of $50,000 or more from Buyer, if it has 50 or more employees 
and it is not otherwise exempt under 41 C.F.R. Part 60-1, shall have developed for each of 
his establishments a written affirmative action compliance program as called for in 41 C.F.R. 
Sec. 60-1.40.  Seller will also require its lower-tier subcontractors who have 50 or more 
employees and receive a subcontract of $50,000 or more and who are not otherwise 
exempt under 41 C.F.R. Part 60-1 to establish written affirmative action compliance 
programs in accordance with 41 C.F.R. Sec. 60-1.40. 

 
E.  Seller certifies that it is not currently in receipt of any outstanding letters of deficiencies, 

show cause, probable cause, or other such notification of noncompliance with EEO 
regulations. 

 
Executed this         day of                        2024 by: 

 
       
Firm name                                 

                                    
By:                                          

 
             

Title                                     
(Seller) 



 

1236155-1 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION 

 
This certification is required by the Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/1 et seq.).  The Drug 
Free Workplace Act, effective January 1, 1992, requires that no grantee or proposer shall 
receive a grant or be considered for the purposes of being awarded a contract for the 
procurement of any property or services from the State unless that grantee or proposer has 
certified to the State that the grantee or proposer will provide a drug free workplace.  False 
certification or violation of the certification may result in sanctions including, but not limited to, 
suspension of contract or grant payments, termination of the contract or grant and debarment 
of contracting or grant opportunities with the State for at least one (1) year but not more than 
five (5) years. 
 
For the purpose of this certification, “grantee” or “proposer” means a corporation, partnership, 
or other entity with twenty-five (25) or more employees at the time of issuing the grant, or a 
department, division, or other unit thereof, directly responsible for the specific performance 
under a contract or grant of $5,000 or more from the State. 
 
The proposer/grantee certifies and agrees that it will provide a drug free workplace by: 
 
(a) Publishing a statement: 
 

 (1) notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 
possession or use of a controlled substance, including cannabis, is prohibited in the 
grantee’s or proposer’s workplace. 

 
 (2) specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such 

prohibition. 
 
 (3) notifying the employee that, as a condition of employment on such contract or 

grant, the employee will: 
 

(A)  abide by the terms of the statement; and 
 
(B)  notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation 

occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 
 
 (b) Establishing a drug free awareness program to inform employees about: 
 

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
 
(2) the grantee’s or proposer’s policy of maintaining a drug free workplace; 
 



 

1236155-1 

(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; 
and 

 
(4)  the penalties that may be imposed upon an employee for drug violations. 

 
(c) Providing a copy of the statement required by subparagraph (a) to each employee 

engaged in the performance of the contract or grant and to post the statement in a 
prominent place in the workplace. 

 
(d) Notifying the contracting or granting agency within ten (10) days after receiving notice 

under part (B) of paragraph (3) of subsection (a) above from an employee or otherwise 
receiving actual notice of such conviction. 

 
(e) Imposing a sanction on, or requiring the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse 

assistance or rehabilitation program by, any employee who is so convicted, as required by 
section 5 of the Drug Free Workplace Act. 

 
(f) Assisting employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug counseling, 

treatment, and rehabilitation is required and indicating that a trained referral team is in 
place. 

 
(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug free workplace through 

implementation of the Drug Free Workplace Act. 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED AFFIRMS, UNDER PENALTIES OF PERJURY, THAT HE OR SHE IS AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE THIS CERTIFICATION ON BEHALF OF THE DESIGNATED ORGANIZATION. 
 
  
 
         
 Printed Name of Organization 
 
 
         
 Signature of Authorized Representative      
 
 
         
 Printed Name and Title   Date 
 
 
         
 Requisition/Contract/Grant ID Number 



 

1236155-1 

 
CERTIFICATION THAT PROPOSER IS NOT BARRED FROM 

PUBLIC CONTRACTING DUE TO BID-RIGGING OR 
BID ROTATING CONVICTIONS 

 
WHEREAS, a conviction for the offense of bid-rigging or bid rotating bars a person or 

entity from bidding on public contracts (720 ILCS 5/33E-3 and 33E-4), and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 33E-11 of the Criminal Code (720 ILCS 5/33E-11) requires bidders and 
proposers to certify on a form provided by the unit of local government or school district that 
they are not barred from public contracting due to bid-rigging or bid rotating convictions. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT the undersigned, 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
(individual, firm, corporation or other entity) 
 
is not barred from bidding on or entering into public contracts due to having been convicted of 
bid-rigging or bid rotating under paragraphs 33E-3 or 33E-4 of the Illinois Criminal Code.  The 
undersigned also certifies that no officers or employees of the bidder or the proposer have 
been so convicted and that the bidder or proposer is not the successor company or a new 
company created by the officers or owners of one so convicted.  It is further certified that any 
such conviction occurring after the date of this certification will be reported to the above public 
body in writing, within seven (7) days of such conviction, if it occurs during any bidding process, 
contract term or otherwise prior to the entering into any contract therewith. 
 
DATE: ________________________ 
 
 

    By: __________________________________  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
 
 
 (SEAL) 
  
 



 

1236155-1 

PROPOSER CERTIFICATION 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

 
                                                (“Proposer”), having submitted a proposal to the Village of Forest 

Park, hereby certifies that said Proposer has a written sexual harassment policy in place in full 

compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105 (A) (4). 

               
(Corporate 

Signed by: ________                                                            Seal) 
 

Title: ________________________________________________                    
 
Name & Address ______________________________________                                                                                  
 
of Proposer         _______________________________________                                                                                             

    or Vendor 
     _______________________________________  
 
 

 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this                     day of                        , 2024      
 
 
___________________________________                                                                              
                       Notary Public 

 



 
1236134.1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-24 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY REQUEST #2 (FINAL) FOR THE 2024 GREEN 
ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT FROM J. NARDULLI CONCRETE, INC. 

(800 & 900 Block of Circle-Marengo Alley) 
  
 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois ("Village"), awarded the 

contract for the 2024 Green Alley Improvements Project to J. Nardulli Concrete, Inc. 

(“Contractor"); and 

 WHEREAS, Contractor has submitted its Pay Request #2 (Final) for completion of the 

work to date under the Project, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the Pay Request #2 (Final) has been reviewed by the Village Engineer, who 

has determined that Contractor is entitled to compensation for its performance under the Project 

to date, pursuant to the Pay Request #2 (Final); and 

 WHEREAS, the Village will be obligated to make a payment on Pay Request #2 (Final) 

to Contractor in the amount of Three Hundred Ninety-Three Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-One 

and 33/100 Dollars ($393,251.33); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor and Council of the Village approve Pay 

Request #2 (Final) to Contractor under the contract for the Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The recitals set forth in the preambles are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference and made a part of this Ordinance. 

 Section 2. The Council of the Village hereby approves Pay Request #2 (Final) to 

Contractor in the amount of Three Hundred Ninety-Three Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-One and 

33/100 Dollars ($393,251.33) under the contract for the Project with Contractor. 



 
1236134.1 

 Section 3. The Village Clerk is directed to attest to the Mayor's signature on any and 

all documents, as necessary. 

 Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 23rd 

day of September, 2024.  

 
 AYES: ___________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this 23rd day of September, 2024. 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of September, 2024. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Belmonte, Village Clerk  
  
 
 



 
1236134.1 

2024 GREEN ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
PAY REQUEST #2 (FINAL) 



 
1236134.1 



 
1236134.1 



 
1236134.1 



 
1236134.1 



 
1236134.1 



 
1236134.1 



 
1236134.1 



 
1236134.1 

 



 
1236132.1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-24 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY REQUEST #1 (FINAL)  
FOR THE MADISON STREET LANDSCAPING PROJECT 

TO EMERALD SITE SERVICES, LLC 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois ("Village"), awarded the 

contract for the Madison Street Landscaping Project to Emerald Site Services, LLC 

(“Contractor"); and 

 WHEREAS, Contractor has submitted its Pay Request #1 (Final) for completion of the 

work to date under the Project, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the Pay Request #1 (Final) has been reviewed by the Village Engineer, who 

has determined that Contractor is entitled to compensation for its performance under the Project 

to date, pursuant to the Pay Request #1 (Final); and 

 WHEREAS, the Village will be obligated to make a payment on Pay Request #1 (Final) 

to Contractor in the amount of Fifty-Six Thousand Two Hundred Fifty and 00/100 Dollars 

($56,250.00); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor and Council of the Village approve Pay 

Request #1 (Final) to Contractor under the contract for the Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The recitals set forth in the preambles are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference and made a part of this Ordinance. 

 Section 2. The Council of the Village hereby approves Pay Request #1 (Final) to 

Contractor in the amount of Fifty-Six Thousand Two Hundred Fifty and 00/100 Dollars 

($56,250.00) under the contract for the Project with Contractor. 



 
1236132.1 

 Section 3. The Village Clerk is directed to attest to the Mayor's signature on any and 

all documents, as necessary. 

 Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 23rd 

day of September, 2024.  

 
 AYES: ___________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this 23rd day of September, 2024. 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of September, 2024. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Belmonte, Village Clerk  
  
 
 



 
1236132.1 

MADISON STREET LANDSCAPING PROJECT 
PAY REQUEST #1 (FINAL) 



 
1236132.1 



 
1236132.1 



 
1236132.1 



 
1236132.1 



 
1236132.1 



 
1236132.1 



 
1236132.1 



 
1236132.1 



 
1236132.1 

 



1236829_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-______________-24 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF AN APPLICATION FOR AN ILLINOIS 

TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM (“ITEP”) GRANT  
FOR THE FOREST PARK HARRISON STREET STREETSCAPE PROJECT 

(Hannah Avenue to Harlem Avenue) 
 

 WHEREAS, the State of Illinois (the “State”), through its Illinois Transportation 

Enhancement Program (“ITEP”), is accepting applications from municipalities to provide partial 

funding for community-based projects that expand and enhance the transportation experience 

and infrastructure; and 

 WHEREAS, an ITEP grant reimburses municipalities for a portion of the cost of 

preliminary engineering, construction engineering, and construction costs for an eligible project; 

and 

 WHEREAS, municipalities receiving an ITEP grant are responsible for the local match 

for the balance of the costs for an eligible project; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (the “Village”) wishes to make application to 

ITEP for the Harrison Street Streetscape Project (the “Project”), with a total Project budget cost 

of Four Hundred Seventy-Three Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty Dollars ($473,860.00), which 

Project is eligible for partial funding under ITEP, a copy of which grant application is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof (“Grant”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Village deems it advisable, necessary and in the public interest that the 

Village apply for the ITEP Grant for the Project and to provide for the local match payment 

obligation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Commissioners of 

the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Resolution are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. The corporate authorities hereby approve the preparation and filing of an 

application for an ITEP Grant for the Project. 

 Section 3. The Mayor be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute and the 

Village Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to attest on behalf of the Village the application 

for the Grant and any accompanying documentation, make all required submissions, and do all 



1236829_1  

things necessary to make the application for the ITEP Grant for the Project in the amount of Two 

Million Nine Hundred Ninety-One Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-Eight Dollars 

($2,991,988.00). 

 Section 4. The Village does hereby commit to fund the Village’s anticipated share of 

the Project costs, if the Village’s application for an ITEP Grant is approved, equal to the local 

matching budget fund of Eight Hundred Fifty-Nine Thousand Three Hundred Seventy-Two 

Dollars ($859,372.00), or such other amount as shall be determined by future agreement with the 

State, for all remaining and ineligible costs associated with the Project, pending approval of this 

ITEP Grant. 

 Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 

approval in accordance with law. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 23rd 

day of September, 2024.  

 
 AYES: ___________________________ 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this 23rd day of September, 2024. 
 
 
   ______________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
And published in pamphlet form 
This ______ day of September, 2024. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Vanessa Belmonte, Clerk  



1236829_1  

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

2024 FOREST HARRISON STREET STREETSCAPE 
ITEP GRANT APPLICATION 

 
 



1231391.1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-___________- 24 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6, ENTITLED  
“SAFETY AND TRAFFIC CONTROL COMMISSION,” OF TITLE 2,  

ENTITLED “BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS,” OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 

as follows: 

Section 1. Chapter 6, entitled “Safety and Traffic Control Commission,” of Title 2, 

entitled “Boards and Commissions,” of the Code of the Village of Forest Park (“Code”) is hereby 

amended as follows: 

CHAPTER 6 
SAFETY AND TRAFFIC CONTROL COMMISSION 

 
2-6-1: COMMISSION CREATED; MEMBERS: 
There is hereby created for the village a safety and traffic control commission, 
which shall consist of seven (7) members who shall be residents of the village and 
serve for a period of four (4) years, and who shall be appointed by the mayor, by 
and with the consent of the village council, to serve without compensation.  
 
The Commissioner of Streets and Public Improvements shall be an ex-officio 
liaison member to the Safety and Traffic Commission, who shall serve as a non-
voting member for advisory, policy, and information purposes to facilitate 
collaboration.  The Village Administrator may provide for such staff assistance as 
the Safety and Traffic Commission may require. 
 
2-6-2: DUTIES: 
It shall be the duty of the safety and traffic control commission, when requested by 
the village council, to recommend rules and regulations concerning, affecting or 
relating to the operations of motor and other vehicles on the public highways and 
elsewhere in the village, and licensing thereof; the rights and duties of drivers 
thereof, and of pedestrians; and the permissible size and lead of vehicles; location 
and operation of traffic and other signs and signals on streets and highways; safety 
zones in certain streets and all other matters pertaining to such objects.The Safety 
and Traffic Commission shall submit recommendations to the Village Council for 
official action.  Such recommendations may include public input on traffic 
conditions on Village streets and promoting educational activities related to traffic, 
pedestrian, and bike safety.  
 
The Commission shall follow the policies established by the Mayor and Village 
Council in carrying out the above-prescribed duties and responsibilities. 
 



1119196.1 
 

 Section 2. The corporate authorities of the Village intend that this Ordinance will be 

made part of the Village Code and that sections of this Ordinance can be renumbered or relettered 

and can be changed to “Section,” “Article,” Chapter” or some other appropriate word or phrase to 

accomplish codification, and typographical errors can be corrected with the authorization of the 

Village Attorney, or his or her designee. 

 Section 3. All parts of the Village Code in conflict with the terms or provisions of this 

Ordinance shall be and the same are hereby amended or repealed to the extent of such conflict, 

and said Village Code and all other existing ordinances shall otherwise remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 4. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance or any part thereof is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective 

by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness 

of the remaining portions of this Ordinance, or any part thereof.  The corporate authorities hereby 

declare that they would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 

subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional, invalid or 

ineffective. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  



1119196.1 
 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval 

and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this _____ 

day of August, 2024.  

 AYES: ___________________________ 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this _____ day of August, 2024. 
 

 
 
   ___________________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of August, 2024. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Belmonte, Clerk 

















Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

1 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

 

X X 

Weekly senior citizen day Wednesday, November 6, trip 2024 

EVENT CONTRACT  

ACCOUNT: Howard Mohr Community Center SALES MANAGER: Jenny Grimm 

CONTACT: Brenda Powers EMAIL: eventsmortongrove@chwinery.com 

ADDRESS: 

EMAIL: bpowers@forestpark.net 

PHONE: 708-771-7737 

PHONE: 847-461-9991 

EVENT SUMMARY  

 Name Date Time Areas EventType Guests Gtd Event F&BMin 

Weekly senior citizenday trip112024/6/11:002:00 am – pmChardonnayRoom 25 $350.00 

ESTIMATED BILLING   

   

  Total 

Subtotal  $0.00 

Gratuity  $0.00 

State Sales Tax 12.5% $0.00 

Grand Total  $0.00 

Deposit  $0.00 

Estimated Amount Due  $0.00 

F&B Minimum $350.00 Total -$0.00 
Met 

 

 

X X 

Weekly senior citizen day Wednesday, November 6, trip 2024 



Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

2 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

ROOM MINIMUM: Room minimum must be reached through the purchase of dining room food and 

beverage only. Sales tax is applied once the minimum is met. All A/V equipment and linen services are not 

applied towards room minimum. Room minimum must be reached by the host’s bill alone. Any additional 

purchases, including but not limited to, cash bar or retail purchases, will be paid for on a separate bill which 

will not apply towards the room minimum. 

ROOM & TABLE ARRANGEMENTS: The size of your group will generally determine the most appropriate 

seating arrangement. We would be happy to discuss specific table configurations in order to provide the best 

dining experience for your guests. Room and table decorations are welcome with approval from the Event 

Coordinator in advance to your event. Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to charge for any damages to rooms, 

tables, linens, and equipment based on cost of damage. Taping, tacking, sticking or gluing on any walls 

including the wine barrel wall, is strictly prohibited. While it is seldom an issue, management cannot control 

noise from the restaurant or any adjacent party. 

MENU: Event pricing does not include local and/or state sales tax. The charges are added to the final bill. 

Final menu selections are due 14 days prior to the event. Menu adjustments can be made up to 7 days prior 

to the event date. If a menu not been selected, Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to choose one for your 

event. 

GUEST COUNT: The final Guest count must be provided no later than SEVEN (7) days prior to the event date. 

The final event charges must meet the food and beverage minimum and then will be based on the 

confirmation guest count provided or actual number of attendees at the time of the event, whichever is 

more. Cooper’s Hawk understands guest attendance may vary and will do our best to accommodate up to a 

maximum of 10% more than the confirmation number provided (this excludes spaces where the maximum 

capacity for the room has been hit with the final guest count provided). 

For restaurant buy-out events only, final Guest count must be provided no later than SEVEN (7) days prior to 

the event date. 

GRATUITY: It is customary to provide gratuity to the service staff. Gratuity is voluntary and at the sole 

discretion of the customer and is NOT included in the price of this contract. For your convenience, you may 

indicate the percentage of gratuity you would like added to your check within this contract. At the 

conclusion of your event, based upon your dining experience, you can adjust the amount of gratuity on your 

final bill. If you prefer not to select gratuity prior to the date of your event, select “Other” and enter zero. 

Please see the payment link included in your Event Proposal. 

BILLING: A finalized bill will be presented on the day of the event after services rendered. All food and 

beverage purchases will be reflected on one bill. The bill will reflect confirmed guest count, room minimum 

requirements, linen or A/V equipment rentals, tax, and deposit, if applicable. Payment can be made with 

cash or credit card and must be finalized on the day of the event. 

CREDIT CARDS, PAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 



Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

3 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

A signed contract and validated credit card are required to confirm a private event booking. Total payment 

including local and/or state tax must be paid in full no later than by the conclusion of the event. 

For contracted events with a food and beverage minimum of $5,000 or more, 50% of the food and beverage 

minimum is due as a deposit at the time of booking along with a signed contract to officially confirm the 

private event. The remaining 50% of the food and beverage minimum is due 14 days prior to the event date. 

Deposits will be applied to the total charge at the end of the event. Deposits may be paid by cash or credit 

card. Personal and business checks are not accepted. 

CANCELLATIONS If cancelling event, the applicable amount below is due and will be charged to the card on 

file unless other form of payment is provided. Cooper’s Hawk requires a credit card on file for all booked 

events. Cancellation fees are not refundable or transferable. 

· Cancellation with 0 - 48 hours of event date and time = 100% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 3 - 7 days of event date = 75% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 8 - 14 days of event date = 50% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 15 - 30 days of the event date = 25% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· No cancellation charges with notice of 31 days or more *Excluding private events with a food and beverage 

minimum of $5,000 or more with non-refundable deposits. 

COVID-19: Your health and safety, as well as the health and safety of your Guests, our staff and onsite 

management, is of the utmost importance to us and we appreciate your cooperation in diligently following 

all guidelines according to local government, CDC, and board of health regulations. With this in mind, we ask 

that you and your Guests adhere to the following during your private event: 

· No one including the Host of the event or Guests of the event experiencing symptoms, having a 

temperature, or having been exposed to COVID-19 within 14 days of the date will attend the event. 

ADDITIONAL TERMS & CONDITIONS: Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to refuse liquor service to any guest 

who shows signs of intoxication based on our educated judgment. All events must begin promptly at 

scheduled times. All terms and pricing are subject to change without notice. 

THE UNDERSIGNED ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE OR SHE HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THIS CONTRACT 

AND ACCEPTS THIS CONTRACT WITH ALL STIPULATIONS AND AGREES TO COMPLY WITH THE SAME. 

Gratuity 
Gratuity is at the discretion of our Guests. Gratuity may be pre-selected here and will appear in the final 

total. 



Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

4 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

18% 

20% 

22% 

Other  

Client Signature 

 

X X 

Weekly senior citizen day trip Wednesday, November 6, 

2024 

CREDIT CARD AUTHORIZATION 

ACCOUNT: Howard Mohr Community Center SALES MANAGER: Jenny Grimm 

CONTACT: Brenda Powers EMAIL: eventsmortongrove@chwinery.com 

ADDRESS: PHONE: 847-461-9991 

EMAIL: bpowers@forestpark.net PHONE: 708-

771-7737 

A signed contract and validated credit card are required to officially book a private event. For contracted 

events with a food and beverage minimum of $5,000 or more, 50% of the food and beverage minimum is 

due as a deposit at the time of booking along with a signed contract to officially book the private event. The 

remaining 50% of the food and beverage minimum is due 14 days prior to the event date. Deposits will be 

applied to the total charge at the end of the event. Total payment including local and/or state tax must be 

paid in full no later than by the conclusion of the event in person or to the card on file. 



Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

5 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

Credit Card Authorization Form 

 

ROOM MINIMUM: Room minimum must be reached through the purchase of dining room food and 

beverage only. Sales tax is applied once the minimum is met. All A/V equipment and linen services are not 

applied towards room minimum. Room minimum must be reached by the host’s bill alone. Any additional 

purchases, including but not limited to, cash bar or retail purchases, will be paid for on a separate bill which 

will not apply towards the room minimum. 

ROOM & TABLE ARRANGEMENTS: The size of your group will generally determine the most appropriate 

seating arrangement. We would be happy to discuss specific table configurations in order to provide the best 

dining experience for your guests. Room and table decorations are welcome with approval from the Event 

Coordinator in advance to your event. Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to charge for any damages to rooms, 

tables, linens, and equipment based on cost of damage. Taping, tacking, sticking or gluing on any walls 

including the wine barrel wall, is strictly prohibited. While it is seldom an issue, management cannot control 

noise from the restaurant or any adjacent party. 

MENU: Event pricing does not include local and/or state sales tax. The charges are added to the final bill. 

Final menu selections are due 14 days prior to the event. Menu adjustments can be made up to 7 days prior 

to the event date. If a menu not been selected, Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to choose one for your 

event. 

GUEST COUNT: The final Guest count must be provided no later than SEVEN (7) days prior to the event date. 

The final event charges must meet the food and beverage minimum and then will be based on the confirmation 

guest count provided or actual number of attendees at the time of the event, whichever is more. Cooper’s 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

6 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

Hawk understands guest attendance may vary and will do our best to accommodate up to a maximum of 10% 

more than the confirmation number provided (this excludes spaces where the maximum capacity for the room 

has been hit with the final guest count provided). 

For restaurant buy-out events only, final Guest count must be provided no later than SEVEN (7) days prior to 

the event date. 

GRATUITY: It is customary to provide gratuity to the service staff. Gratuity is voluntary and at the sole 

discretion of the customer and is NOT included in the price of this contract. For your convenience, you may 

indicate the percentage of gratuity you would like added to your check within this contract. At the 

conclusion of your event, based upon your dining experience, you can adjust the amount of gratuity on your 

final bill. If you prefer not to select gratuity prior to the date of your event, select “Other” and enter zero. 

Please see the payment link included in your Event Proposal. 

BILLING: A finalized bill will be presented on the day of the event after services rendered. All food and 

beverage purchases will be reflected on one bill. The bill will reflect confirmed guest count, room minimum 

requirements, linen or A/V equipment rentals, tax, and deposit, if applicable. Payment can be made with 

cash or credit card and must be finalized on the day of the event. 

CREDIT CARDS, PAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 

A signed contract and validated credit card are required to confirm a private event booking. Total payment 

including local and/or state tax must be paid in full no later than by the conclusion of the event. 

For contracted events with a food and beverage minimum of $5,000 or more, 50% of the food and beverage 

minimum is due as a deposit at the time of booking along with a signed contract to officially confirm the 

private event. The remaining 50% of the food and beverage minimum is due 14 days prior to the event date. 

Deposits will be applied to the total charge at the end of the event. Deposits may be paid by cash or credit 

card. Personal and business checks are not accepted. 

CANCELLATIONS If cancelling event, the applicable amount below is due and will be charged to the card on 

file unless other form of payment is provided. Cooper’s Hawk requires a credit card on file for all booked 

events. Cancellation fees are not refundable or transferable. 

· Cancellation with 0 - 48 hours of event date and time = 100% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 3 - 7 days of event date = 75% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 8 - 14 days of event date = 50% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 15 - 30 days of the event date = 25% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· No cancellation charges with notice of 31 days or more *Excluding private events with a food and beverage 

minimum of $5,000 or more with non-refundable deposits. 



Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

7 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

COVID-19: Your health and safety, as well as the health and safety of your Guests, our staff and onsite 

management, is of the utmost importance to us and we appreciate your cooperation in diligently following 

all guidelines according to local government, CDC, and board of health regulations. With this in mind, we ask 

that you and your Guests adhere to the following during your private event: 

· No one including the Host of the event or Guests of the event experiencing symptoms, having a 

temperature, or having been exposed to COVID-19 within 14 days of the date will attend the event. 

ADDITIONAL TERMS & CONDITIONS: Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to refuse liquor service to any guest 

who shows signs of intoxication based on our educated judgment. All events must begin promptly at 

scheduled times. All terms and pricing are subject to change without notice. 

THE UNDERSIGNED ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE OR SHE HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THIS CONTRACT 

AND ACCEPTS THIS CONTRACT WITH ALL STIPULATIONS AND AGREES TO COMPLY WITH THE SAME. 

ROOM MINIMUM: Room minimum must be reached through the purchase of dining room food and 

beverage only. Sales tax is applied once the minimum is met. All A/V equipment and linen services are not 

applied towards room minimum. Room minimum must be reached by the host’s bill alone. Any additional 

purchases, including but not limited to, cash bar or retail purchases, will be paid for on a separate bill which 

will not apply towards the room minimum. 

ROOM & TABLE ARRANGEMENTS: The size of your group will generally determine the most appropriate 

seating arrangement. We would be happy to discuss specific table configurations in order to provide the best 

dining experience for your guests. Room and table decorations are welcome with approval from the Event 

Coordinator in advance to your event. Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to charge for any damages to rooms, 

tables, linens, and equipment based on cost of damage. Taping, tacking, sticking or gluing on any walls 

including the wine barrel wall, is strictly prohibited. While it is seldom an issue, management cannot control 

noise from the restaurant or any adjacent party. 

MENU: Event pricing does not include local and/or state sales tax. The charges are added to the final bill. 

Final menu selections are due 14 days prior to the event. Menu adjustments can be made up to 7 days prior 

to the event date. If a menu not been selected, Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to choose one for your 

event. 

GUEST COUNT: The final Guest count must be provided no later than SEVEN (7) days prior to the event date. 

The final event charges must meet the food and beverage minimum and then will be based on the 

confirmation guest count provided or actual number of attendees at the time of the event, whichever is 

more. Cooper’s Hawk understands guest attendance may vary and will do our best to accommodate up to a 

maximum of 10% more than the confirmation number provided (this excludes spaces where the maximum 

capacity for the room has been hit with the final guest count provided). 

For restaurant buy-out events only, final Guest count must be provided no later than SEVEN (7) days prior to 

the event date. 



Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

8 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

GRATUITY: It is customary to provide gratuity to the service staff. Gratuity is voluntary and at the sole 

discretion of the customer and is NOT included in the price of this contract. For your convenience, you may 

indicate the percentage of gratuity you would like added to your check within this contract. At the 

conclusion of your event, based upon your dining experience, you can adjust the amount of gratuity on your 

final bill. If you prefer not to select gratuity prior to the date of your event, select “Other” and enter zero. 

Please see the payment link included in your Event Proposal. 

BILLING: A finalized bill will be presented on the day of the event after services rendered. All food and 

beverage purchases will be reflected on one bill. The bill will reflect confirmed guest count, room minimum 

requirements, linen or A/V equipment rentals, tax, and deposit, if applicable. Payment can be made with 

cash or credit card and must be finalized on the day of the event. 

CREDIT CARDS, PAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 

A signed contract and validated credit card are required to confirm a private event booking. Total payment 

including local and/or state tax must be paid in full no later than by the conclusion of the event. 

For contracted events with a food and beverage minimum of $5,000 or more, 50% of the food and beverage 

minimum is due as a deposit at the time of booking along with a signed contract to officially confirm the 

private event. The remaining 50% of the food and beverage minimum is due 14 days prior to the event date. 

Deposits will be applied to the total charge at the end of the event. Deposits may be paid by cash or credit 

card. Personal and business checks are not accepted. 

CANCELLATIONS If cancelling event, the applicable amount below is due and will be charged to the card on 

file unless other form of payment is provided. Cooper’s Hawk requires a credit card on file for all booked 

events. Cancellation fees are not refundable or transferable. 

· Cancellation with 0 - 48 hours of event date and time = 100% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 3 - 7 days of event date = 75% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 8 - 14 days of event date = 50% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· Cancellation within 15 - 30 days of the event date = 25% of the food and beverage minimum is due 

· No cancellation charges with notice of 31 days or more *Excluding private events with a food and beverage 

minimum of $5,000 or more with non-refundable deposits. 

COVID-19: Your health and safety, as well as the health and safety of your Guests, our staff and onsite 

management, is of the utmost importance to us and we appreciate your cooperation in diligently following 

all guidelines according to local government, CDC, and board of health regulations. With this in mind, we ask 

that you and your Guests adhere to the following during your private event: 

· No one including the Host of the event or Guests of the event experiencing symptoms, having a 

temperature, or having been exposed to COVID-19 within 14 days of the date will attend the event. 



Weekly senior citizen day trip Updated: 9/10/2024 

9 of 9 Weekly senior citizen day trip 

ADDITIONAL TERMS & CONDITIONS: Cooper’s Hawk reserves the right to refuse liquor service to any guest 

who shows signs of intoxication based on our educated judgment. All events must begin promptly at 

scheduled times. All terms and pricing are subject to change without notice. 

THE UNDERSIGNED ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE OR SHE HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THIS CONTRACT 

AND ACCEPTS THIS CONTRACT WITH ALL STIPULATIONS AND AGREES TO COMPLY WITH THE SAME. 



516 4th Street

Wilmette, IL 60091-2829

(847) 920-5360 | FAX 5358

Jen Ruffner, Group Sales Manager

Jruffner@MusicTheaterWorks.org

PRODUCTION

DATE/TIME

TICKET TYPE # OF TICKETS PRICE PER TICKET COST

24 $44 $1,056

0 $34 $0

0 $20 $0

1 $0 $0

$10

25 $1,066

10/16/24

TOTAL DUE 

FINAL COUNT AND PAYMENT DUE: 

Little Shop of Horrors

 Wed November 6 @ 2pm 

PREMIER/PLATINUM  

GOLD/SILVER 

STUDENT

COMP

Name 

Company

Address

City State Zip 

Phone

GROUP SALES INVOICE 

$10 Group Processing Fee

Email 

Brenda Powers 

7640 Jackson Boulevard 

Howard Mohr Community Center

Forest Park,  IL  60130

708-771-7737 

bpowers@forestpark.net

mailto:Jruffner@MusicTheaterWorks.org
mailto:bpowers@forestpark.net
mailto:bpowers@forestpark.net
mailto:bpowers@forestpark.net
mailto:bpowers@forestpark.net
mailto:bpowers@forestpark.net






Proclamation: Disability Employment Awareness Month  

 

WHEREAS, Forest Park, IL affirms the principles of equality and inclusion 

for people with disabilities as set forth for the State of Illinois and as 

embodied in the Americans with Disabilities Act, the laws of the State of 

Illinois and ordinances of Forest Park and Cook County; 

 

WHEREAS, October is National Disability Employment Awareness Month, 

a time to recognize the value and talent workers with disabilities add to 

America's workplaces and economy;  

 

WHEREAS, individuals with disabilities deserve to have access to good 

jobs, every month of the year; 

 

WHEREAS, numerous advocacy organizations in Illinois, including 

Progress Center for Independent Living, work with consumers in the 

community to empower them to pursue employment opportunities; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, Mayor Rory Hoskins does hereby declare the month 

of October 2024 National Disability Employment Awareness Month. 

 

SIGNED 

 

_______ 


	092324Village Council Agenda
	minutes 090924
	THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, SEPTEMBER 9, 2024
	ROLL CALL
	Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	APPROVAL OF BILLS:
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins

	FD Monthly report August 24
	September 23 2024 Bills by Resolution
	September 23 2024 Resolution.pdf
	September 23 2024 Agenda.pdf

	1 Forest Park Resolution authorizing execution of professional engineering and services proposal from Burke Engineering to perform feasibility study for the reloc.pdf
	2 Forest Park Resolution authorizing award of contract for the 2024 Village of Forest Park Ferdinand Avenue Watermain and Storm Sewer Replacement and Ferdinand A.pdf
	3 Forest Park Resolution authorizing the issuance of a request for qualifications for services related to professional consulting services for advanced metering i.pdf
	2. PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL
	3. MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS
	 Financial soundness and stability of the Company, including most recent Annual Report and Audited Financial Statement.
	2. SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS
	ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT
	2.6 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT
	2.7 NOT TO EXCEED CONTRACT

	PROPOSER CERTIFICATION
	Notary Public

	4 Forest Park Resolution Approving Pay Request #2 (Final) for the 2024 Green Alley Improvements Project from J. Nardulli Concrete, Inc. (800_900 Block Circle-Mare.pdf
	5 Resolution Approving Pay Request #1 (Final) for the Madison Street Landscaping Project from Emerald Site Services, LLC(1236132.1).pdf
	6 Forest Park Resolution approving application for Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program (ITEP) Grant for the Forest Park Harrison Street Streetscape Projec.pdf
	7 Forest Park Ordinance amending Chapter 6, Safety and Traffic Control Commission, of Title 2, Boards and Commissions(1231391.1).pdf
	8 brownappointment_Redacted
	9A Coopers Hawk Winery  Restaurant - Morton Grove_original
	9B Howard Mohr Community Center Invoice MTW - LITTLE SHOP OF HORRORS
	10 salvationarmy request
	11 DEAM Proclamation



